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Press-house and cellar

The presshouse and cellar are built into the side of a hill which slopes

to the north and east, The press house rests directly on the foundation walls

of the cellar is constructed of brick and is one and one half storys.

The roof is covered with corrugated metal.

The gable faces north with an entrance at the north gable endwall which

once must have given entrance to a porch which is now gone. The door is centered
in the endwall.

One both of the long sides are two window openings symmetrically arranged.

At the rear at a grade entrance is a double leaf door to the press room.

Windows: Flat arches of stretcher brick with casing edge pattern A, wood
sills and six over six light sash,

Doors: The door at the north wall has a flat arch. The press room door has
a broad wood lintel,

Interior of the press house:

The house 1is divided into two rooms of equal size. The press room is southerly
with the double leaf entrance., The room originally had a dirt floor.

The brick on the interior 1s left exposed and the joists of the half story

or attic are exposed with planking on top. The joists are ca. five by five inch
and are crudely hewn square.

A brick wall divides the two rooms with a barn red painted board and batten
door between the rooms. The north room is plastered and finished with a

plank floor and plastered walls, stove flue. This room was probably kept

as a tasting room or housing for hired help at time of grape harvest,

Cellar: The cellar has a antechamber of stone and brick over the entry which
was added later. There is a double leaf door to the cellar with wood lintel
and original doors of wide boards with tongue and grooved joints and edge
beading. It is colored a soft blue pastel., The cellar is stone arched

16 feet wide and 30 feet long and is a single chamber. There is a hole in
the arch for passing the fermented must to the cellar from the press room.
In the further endwall is a niche. There are unusual ventilation shafts

on the long walls with one foot square holes at four feet from the dirt floor
rising in the stone masonry to above the arch of the cellar. In either
endwall there are shafts, though on the forward endwall they are actually
openings directly to the outside while on the further wall they rise to
openings above the arch. (see drawing).
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General Description: There are three construction methods employed on

this buildingthough the dominant is rock faced coursed stone masonry

on this one story extremely long endgabled building. Rising in the center

is a frame second story section over the original drive through for the grape
press room. At the extreme north end is a brick section.

There is a stone arched wine cellar beneath the building.

Setting: The house is virtually at the point of a long ridge overlooking the
Missouri River.

Roof: Corrugated metal

Windows: Segmental btrick arches over the voids with alternating courses of
double header and stretcher brick, The windows were originally six over six.
Wood sills have beer. replaced with concrete, The casing edges are beaded.

In the center of the building below the frame second story is a wide entrance
which was once a double leaf doorway (see photo) mathced on the obverse side
of the building. This was a drive through. Only the iron pintles remain to
mark the doors.

Interior:

The extreme south end of the stonr building is a later addition though
continuous with the earlier stone masonry (see historic photo). This appears
to have been a barn storage space with double leaf door on the east for farm
equipment storage. To the south of the drive through was the press room of

the winery--a large open space with a single door leading from the drive through.
The floors were once stone flagged. There is a flue located in the wall of the
drive-through. Near the doorway is a hole in the floor where the must was
gravity fed to the storage cellars below,

To the other side of the drive through was a small room which was used an an
office for the winery and had the stair to the second story rooms. In the
northeast corner of this rrom was a built in niche for a Lincoln type secretary
type desk of walnut. This desk hsa since been removed to another part of the
house.

The small room gives onto a large finished room with triangular pediment
architrave window surround and doorways with applied trim to the edges of the
architrave and door and window faces. The wall openings have coffered panels
to the inside of the frames. To the north is the entrance through the stone
wall to the brick section of the house. This was once a single room under

the same roof line as the rest of the building with a shed roof brick room
projecting to the east (see photos). It was impossible to determine if this room
and the shed roof room were original or if they were constructed at different
times themselves as they are covered on the exterior with modern horizontal
siding over the brick. The facade of the shed room is altered and covered

by a still later porch also of brick.

Under the shed room there is a full cellar with concrete floor. On the north wall
there is a grade entrnace single leaf door in the rock foundation with a seg-
mental brick arch. Beneath the large brick room is a full cellar room with
connecting door to :he othe part of the cellar with a stone wall between,

This later room has a square hole under the arch of the wine cellar in the

endwall of the stone section of the building. The walls of this cellar

are of stone, the floor is one by six white pine. Beneath is the new wine(outer)
storage cellar with the joists and flooring exposed on the underside.

There is an exterior entrance to the storage cellars in the north wall
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at grade arrived at by a swail with stone retaining walls cut into the earth.
though the ground naturally slopes away from the building. The entrance has a
stone segmental arch and a double leaf door swinging on pintles. The door

has a vertical boarded interior and diagonal boarded exterior (photo).

The first room entered is the outer cellar with wood ceiling. There is a
stone wall between the two cellars with a similar door to that found on the
exterior,

The wine storage cellar has a stone barrel vault with regularly spaced
intersecting ventilation shafts to either side on the long walls. They
are segmental shaped with stone arches though with brick vaulting and they
rise to below grade with shafts circa four feet that carry them vertically
to grade on the exterior. The floor was dirt in both cellars. There are
stone set at intervals and several of the original log sleepers survive on
which the wine casks once sat.

The cellar 1s altogether 116 feet long and 18 feet wide (see drawing).

History:

The farm was purchased from the U.S. Government by George Husmann on August
16,1859, Husmann proceeded to plant the area to vineyards.

In 1864-1865 He began the construction of the present building complex.

In 1868 (December 14th) he sold the entire grounds to his former employee
August Loenig for $15,000, Loenig came to this country in 1859 from
Meissen, Germany the son of a winemaker who together with his brother (who
grew grapes on a neighboring farm) came to the county. Loenig further
developed the winery so that by 1883 he had a eight acre vineyard on the
slopes of the farm, In 1870 he made 7,000 gallons of wine., The property was
valued at $26,000 ir. that year., The winery was a popular picnic and
entertainment spot. Excursions were planned from Hermann with some
frequency through the late 19th century.
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General Description: The house was built in two distinct phases, The

first phase is a one story brick house which now the ell to the two story
later phase house. The first phase house has arock faced coursed stone
foundation with full cellar beneath with exterior entrance. The later
stage has a brick arhced wine cellar with entrnce beneath the south endwall
of the building (sze photo).

Setting: The house sits on a west facing slope which rises behind the
house. To the rear of the house are a number of outbuildings. Originally
the house was off the main road instead of in front of it as it is now.
The original road location was beneath the bluff toward the river (?).

Facade: Five symmetrical bays at either story of the second stage house
with center entry. The porch is original (?).

Roof: There are flanking end chimneys rising from the peak. Flush eaves.
paired dormers on facade roof face with six over six light sash.
Note the stone gable springers at the eave steps.

Windows: Six over six light sash in openings with segmental arches of
stretcher brick with casing moulding in pattern C. The upper sash conforms
to the segmental shape of the void. Shutters at all windows.

Entry: The entry has a four light transom and sidelights with single leaf
door.

Early House!
The first house was a hall kitchen type with boxed stair to an unfinished
half story. The windows have six over six light sash and wood lintels.,

Cellar:

The entrance is at grade level made possible by cutting a swail with

stone retaining walls (see photo) at the south endwall of the later phase
house., The entrance is bridged with a segmental shaped arch of alternating
coursing of header and stretcher brick. The doors are hinged on the

inside and swing on pintles. The outside surface of the doors is diagonal
boarding laid over the inner surface of vertical boards on the inner

face. Rock faced coursed masonry walls comprise the outer walls,

doubling as the foundation to the house itself. Five and one half feet
from the original dirt floor the brick barrel vault commences rising approx-
imately ten feet from the floor of the cellar. There are four ventilation
shafts in the west long wall and a single on the east., These have segmental
shaped vaulting intersecting the main vault. There are raking openings

in the stone masonry of the walls, The north endwall is of stone masonry
with two raking vents opening above the level of the arch. There is a

flue hole centered in the masonry of the endwall. Beneath the flue at
approximately four feet from the floor is a 14 inch deep niche

two feet on each side. There are similar though smaller niches in the long
wall eighteen feet from the south wall. The cellar is a single chamber

18 by 42 and a half feet long.

Outbulldings: There is a gable roofed brick smokehouse southeast of the
house with triangular oriented vents in the gable endwalls. North of the
smokehouse is a small house built as a residence for the elder Frederich
Vallet, Well to the east of the house and other buildings up the hill slope
is a large gable roof barn also built of brick.
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General Description: There are two distinct phases to this building. The
most important is the two story stone section with attached one and one half
story press house. In front of the stone section is a frame house to which
the stone section is a long ell., Originally the stone section was an addition
to an early two story half timber house to which the stone section was

added to give length to the original building under continuous roof line,

Setting: The house sits in a valley and overloojs a major road into the
town of Hermann from the east. At one time there was a log barn across
the road. There are several turn of the century outbuildings to the west
of the main building. The furthermost to the west is a large and early
half timber barn.

Beneath the stone house section is a full wine cellar sixteen by sixteen
feet whose walls are foundation of the house above. It has a partial

stone and brick arch. The stone masonry begins the curve of the arch for
about two feet from the vertical and rest of the arch is brick (see photo).
The floor of the cellar is large stone flags with a centered water conduit.
On the north wall are two vents which open directly at the point where

the arch begins from the vertical. The opening begins to rake back from
the floor level until it is approximately one foot back in the wall, The
shaft rises vertically and terminates above grade in the foundation of

the house. On the south wasll there is an intersecting flat arch though
with a brick segmen:al arch at the point of intersection with the cellar
arch, The shaft begins at the point of juncture of the vertical stone wall
and the arch. The stone constructed shaft tapers as it rises and terminates
in a grate above grade.

In the further endwall is a segmental brick arch opening which was intended

to lead to another chamber which was never built, The entrance to the cellar
has a brick segmental arch of alternating courses of stretcher-header and
header-strecher brizk. The doorway is couble leaved with board and batten
doors and & stone tareshold. The way into the cellar is by wood steps of

open stringer and risers in a stone well. The well is inside the presshouse
which is approximataly one and one half foot below the grade level of the
exterior. The pressroom is stone flagged.

The one and one half story press room is also constructed of stone. The

roof structure has been replaced. There is a small window in the north wall
with a fixed four light sash., In the west wall is an attic and first story
window with six over six light sash. The openings have segmental stone arches
and has a wooden beam lintel over the double leaf entrance. There is a

large stone “threshold and a single stone step on the inside of the lip.

There are large stone gable springers at the corner of the eaves which

project approximately 18 inches.

The openings in the room have beveled reveals, The press room has only lightly
plastered walls, The handhewn half story joists are exposed below,  The
flooring of the half story is one by six pine tongue and grooved boards.

There is an open stringer stair to the half story. The wine making equipment
is still in this room.

The rock faced coursed stone walls of the house have segmental arched evenly
spaced openings with six over six light sash, mitred and moulded casing

and wood sills. There are two window bays on either north and south elevations
at both storys.

Outbuildings: The furthermost barn is handhewn half timbered on a stone
foundation with grade cellar cattle stalls (see photo).
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General Description: The house is a one story rectangle endgable brick
building with a full arched wine cellar beneath. Frame ell added ca.
1940 and a modern wing to the west of the house attached to the endwall.

Setting: The house is part of a complex offarm buildings. The house
sits on a sloping hill facing to the south and overlooking one of the
main roads into Hermann from the east.

Roof: covered with corrugated metal.

Cornice: corbeled cornice with a double course horizontal header dentil pattern
on top of a stretcher course.

Facade: Five asymmetrical bays on the facade with the door into the second
bay. -

Windows: Segmental brick arches of double rowlock construction with one over
one light sash and beaded casing edge.

Side elevations: West: two attic windows with segmental arches of header brick.
Originally there was a simple gable roof with no knee wall resting on top

of the foundation walls of the wine cellar below and covered with a corrugated
metal roof. A door led into this space from the house. There is now a modern
addition in its place.

East: Two attic and two first story window openings. The grade entrance cut

into the side of the hill into the wine cellar is in the endwall of this elevation.
There are stone retaining walls to either side of the entrnace.

Rear elevation: There is a one and one half story frame ell added to the rear
of the house. Originally there was a full porch across the rear of the brick
house with a single leaf door into the press room of the wine cellar from a
short flight of stairs from off this porch.

Interior: All interior walls are of single course brick masonry. The window
and door surrounds have simple triangular pediment architraves.

Wine Cellar:

The entrance is at zrade on the east endwall with sweeping stone retaining
walls to either sids. There is a double leaf door with segmental arch

into the press room in the foundation wall of the house. All segmental arches
in the cellar are brick of alternating courses of header-stretcher and
stretcher-header brick. The original exterior door and the interior doors
between the press room and the storage cellar survive, They are two layers

of one inch boards with the inner surface laid diagonally and the outer laid
vertically. The outer doors have their original lever action lockbox in place.
The doors swing on pintle hinges.

The press room or outer cellar has exposed room joists above and is approximately
fourteen feet in height. In the north wall is a single leaf doorway well up

on the wall with wooden steps to a landing. There is a grade level stone vent

in the south wall. The room is 16 by 18 feet., There are double leaf doors

set evenly with the exterior doors in a stone wall leading into the storage
cellar. The floor of the press room and storage cellar is dirt and they are
both on the same level,
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The storage cellar has a brick arched roof. There are two intersecting segmental
arched grated ventilation shafts on each long wall., In the stone endwall there
are two vents raking back ca. one foot and rising below grade at the top of

the arch. There is a tile lined stove flue in the endwall near the top of

the arch in the endwall.

The storage cellar is eighteen feet wide and 32 and one half feet long.

Outbuildings: To the west and slightly north of the house is a modern barm.
Close to the house at the rear is a V-notched log gable roof smoke house. To
the east of this is a small vertically boarded building with a stone foundation.
Further yet is a log chickenhouse.
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General Description: Two story rectangle endgable brick house with an earlier
house of one and one half storys also of brick as an ell. The two story section
has a full wine cellar beneath,

Roof: covered with standing seam metal roof.

Cornicet corbeled cornice with a double stepped stretcher band topped by a
double stepped horizontal dentil pattern with glazed brick header interstices.

Gable: The eaves are flush in the endwalls. There are large peak chimneys.

Facade: Five symmetrical bays at either story with the door in the center of the
first story. The porch is over the entry only with a hip roof and supported on
turned wood posts.

Windows: Openings have half round arches of stretcher brick with beaded casing
edge, wood sills, and six over six light sash with upper sash with upper sash
conforming to the half round shape of the opening. There were shutters at the
windows (still stored in the cellar). Attic windows have segmental arched
openings of header brick. 1In the brick ell the windows are segmental arched
with stretcher brick with six over six light sash and flat upper sash head, wood
sills, and beaded casing edge.

Doors: The facade entry has a broad stone threshold. The opening has a half

round arch and three light transom conforming to the arch. The single leaf

door is a machine made Christian type door. The rear entrance into the hall is
identical except that the door is an earlier machine made version of the Christian
pattern door.

Side elevations: both east and west elevations have two bays at attic and
both first and second story levels., The cellar entrance is into the east
elevation endwall.

Rear Wing: There is a clear seam in the brick masonry between the wings. It

is clear upon viewing the interior that the wing is the early building of

the two sections. The wing is one and one half storys with standing seam
metal roof and gable end chimney. The gable endwall has flush eaves. There
are two first story bays on the west elevation long wall with door in the first
bay. This was the rear of the early building. The east elevation has three
bays with door in the first., The cellar entrance is under the second bay
window., The foundation 1s rock faced coursed stone, 'There are two attic
windows in the gable end wall.

Interior: The two story house section has simple triangular pediment architrave
surrounds. The house plan is centered on a hall with a large open room to

the right and with two rooms to the left of the hall.

Rear elevation of the two story section: There is a single window at the first
and second story levels. At the first story there is a door entry to the center
hall. There is a small porch over the reentrant angle of the two house
sections,

Cellar: The entrance to the wine cellar is in the east endwall and is at
grade through a swail cut into the hillside with stone retaining walls. The
entrance has a brick segmental arch of stretcher--header/header-stretcher
brick with diagonal boarding on the exterior and vertical boarding forming
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the interior face of the door. The doors swing on pintle hinges. The cellar
is a single chamber with rock faced coursed ashlar stone walls rising to five
feet and forming the foundation of the house and the support of the brick arch
ceiling. there are intersecting segmental arch rising ventilation shafts with
iron grates at grade level on the exterior. In the stone endwall of the cellar
are two raking stone vents rising at grade above the level of the arch. 1In

the center of the endwall set approximately four feet from the dirt floor is

a niche centered in the wall.

There are two arched vents to either side of the long wall to the south while

only two on the northwall, The vents begin their ascent in the stone sidewalls
raking back three feet from the floor and tapering back ca. four inches before the
walls of the arch begin,

The walls of the stone cellar form the foundation walls of the brick house above.
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General Description: Two story rectangle shaped building constructed of
brick resting on a rock faced coursed ahlar stone foundation with a full
stone cellar beneath.

Setting: The farmhouse sits in the midst of a number of outbuildings well off
the public road.

Roof: The roof is hipped and covered with standing seam metal. There are
large brick chimney stacks centered in either of the endwalls.

Cornice: The cornice is corbeled with a double stretcher course surmounted
by a double horizontal header dentil pattern.

Facade: There are five symmetrical second story bays with a center doorway
leading to a small balcony with cast iron railing and supported on paired

cast iron brackets. The first story likewise has five symmetrical bays

though the first is a three sided bay window with hip roof and a corbeled brick
cornice of stretcher brick course surmounted by a vertical header dentil
pattern. The long side of the bay has a two over two light window and the
narrow side walls have one over one light window openings. The entry is in

the center bay with stone steps leading to a recessed vestibule entry.

The entry surround has machine moulded surround and bullseye block corners.

Windows: Voids have segmental arches of stretcher brick with stone sills, two
over two light sash with the upper sash segmentally shaped conforming to
the shape of the arch., The casing is moulded in pattern C.

Side elevations;South: Two symmetrical bays in either story. North: There

are two symmetrical bays at the second story. The first story has three bays
with a door entry in the first. There is a low brick wall on a tall stone
foundation with a gable roof over the stone steps leading to the wine storage
cellar.

Rear elevation: matches the facade in every detail except for there is no

bay window.

Interior: The house floorplan revolves around a wide center hall off which
are two rooms to either side, The right hand pair are front and back parlors
with pocket doors between. The kitchen is in the left rear room . The rear
rooms are approximately two thirds the size of the forward rooms.

The surrounds are machine moulded with corner bullseye blocks. Woodwork

is false grained in imitation of quarter sawn oak.

Cellar: The exterior entry €o the cellar is at the north endwall with brick
walled entry, double leaf doors, stone steps, and brick segmental arching

in the foundation stone masonry with alternating courses of stretcher double
rowlock coursing. The cellar is dirt floored. The joists are exposed in the
cellar. The stone endwall has a niche about nine inches deep centered in the
wall., There are three such niches on the west wall also centered. These
niches have double rowlock segmental arch lintels and there are clear slots
to receive wooden shelves. There are grade level windows in the cellar two
on each long wall,

Interior access to the cellar is made from the stair in the main hall. The cellar
is approximately nine feet deep.
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Outbuildings:

To the rear of the house is a gable roof brick smokehouse which had two
chambers, one of which appears to have been either of frame comstruction or
open porch under the roofline. There is an interior brick wall. (see photo).
Immediately to the left and rear of the main house is a long rectangular
building constructed over a deep wine cellar approximately eleven feet deep

to the dirt floor. There are unpeeled log joists visible from within the
cellar and thesquare hewn log sill is visible on the exterior though the
entire superstructure appears to be of much later construction (ca. 1900?).
The entrance to the cellar is from the exterior on the north endwall with stone
steps and a frame gable roof enclusure over the steps with double leaf door.
There is also an interior trapdoor and stair to the cellar-

Further to the north of the complex is a single brick cuthouse. To the north
and west there is the remains of a log building with crude V-notching built of
peeled logs.
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General Description: The structure is composed of residence and press—-ferment-
ation room attached to one another with a breezeway between (framed in recently).
The house--the first building--is horizontal log over a full wine cellar with
exposed joilsts in the cellar. Later a braced frame press house and cellar

were built connected above and below.

Roof: covered with standing seam metal roof. The original house has a gable

roof and intersects at right angles the gable roof of the press house. Later
additions to the press house added a further extension of the roofline to the east
and to the west and a gable wall dormer on the north.

The development of the property began with the construction ef the horizontal log
house of two rooms and traditional plan with a full cellar beneath the

house with exterior entrance, Later an L-shaped addition was made built of
handhewn timber with massive uprights and diagonal bracing with a long single
girt on the side and endwalls above which is a plate which is mortised to the
uprights., This building was thirty feet long with an ell attached

to the original house to create a breezeway with the single cellar entrance

in the floor. Under the half timber press house was a cellar which extended
beyond the walls to the east and west., Presumably there were shed roof appendages
to the braced frame section covering these cellar extensions., The cellar is
approximately 9 feet deep and has exposed unpeeled log joists. Under the main
house section the logs are approximately eight inches apart. The cellar

is dirt floored. The walls are roughly laid rock

faced coused stone, There are grade level window vents with a single centered
in the west and east walls., The cellar under the press house was dug under
the breezeway and the original .north wall of the house cellar knocked out to
join the two together. Later a further section of cellar was dug under the
rear kitchen ell of the house. The large opening from the stair into the long
cellar beneath the press house has a massive log lintel, The sill of the
original house is visible and is a ten by fourteen hewn sill. The interior
of the cellar shows evidence of whitewashing.

At a later date the appendages to the press house were removed and the frame
gable roof extensions made. At that time the walls of the press house

were given a horizontal lap siding, window openings and door openings, and

the interior of all of the press house covered with tongue and grooved boxcar
siding. Interior partitions were also added of flush tongue and grooved
boarding. At this time the rear porch on the main house was closed and the
breezeway boxed in,

House:

The house has handhewn five by five rafters rising to the peak where they

are butten together., There is a low log kneewall in the half story. Originally
there were small fixed sash attic windows in the endwalls, The original siding
was beveled and eight inches wide visible from the ceiling of the press room
breezeway. The house has two rooms with the door into the larger of the two
rooms and with the boxed stair in the smaller room.

In the attic it is visible that there are only plates across the original
breezeway attached to the log plate of the original house at the corners with
metal straps.

The facade of the house has three bays and is symmetrical. The porch is not
original with boxcar siding in the ceiling and supported on chamfered posts
with a concrete floor. There is a kick in the roof to carry it over the porch.
Only the doors on the interior preserve the original woodwork with metred
corners and edge beading with an applied moulding in pattern A,
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General Description: Two story rectangle endgable building constructed

of rock faced coursed stone., There is a stone vaulted wine storage cellar
in one section of the first level,

Setting:The house faces the road which runs through the Frene creek valley.
The road was the promary road from the west into the town of Hermann.

The house is built in to the hill which continues to rise behind the house.
There are grade level entrances at the first story level on the facade

and into the second story level on the rear.

Roof: Standing seam metal
Cornice: flush with hanging gutters.

Facade: The house has five symmetrical bays with centered entry in the
ground or first story level.

Windows: On the ground floor the two facade window openings on the

right have their original casement window sash. These sash have two elemements
independent of one another. The upper element has two lights and the lower

has three. All other window openings have been framed smaller and have

two over two light sash added.

Side elevations: There are two symmetrical window bays on the west
elevation and a single attic window centered in the gable, On the east
elevation there is a modern concrete gargge at ground level and an open
porch above with a window turned into a door for access to the living
quarters.

Rear elevation: There are fio windows aloh2 the rear and a door centered
along the elevation so as to enter the center hall of the living quarters.
There is a shed roof porch across the entire rear. The porch 1is open with
unpeeled log rafters exposed. The rafters are tied to the cieling joists
which pierce the wall and extend slightly beyond the wall plane,

The concrete floor and porch posts are modern. There is an eleaborate
cistern cover built so as to provide gravity feed water to the kitchen.
There are no surviving outbuildings.

Interior Description

Wine Storage Cellar--Integrated into the main house mass. The cellar

is constructed of stone with a barrel vault., . he north wall rests on
bed rock which actually is partially exposed in the room and on which has
been added brick masonry to form two brick ledges. Centered in the lower
ledge is a niche of about 16 inches square and about the same deep.

The south wall forms the foundation of the two story stone house and

has two rectangular vents raked back at increasing angles in the masonry
of the wall with the opening on level with vault arch (see photo).

There are two similar vents in the north wall as well,

The entrance to the cellar is from the grade level entry hall on the facade.
There are two equal sized board and batten double leaf doors with edge
beading swinging on pintle and rat-tail hingles which open onto a barrel
vaulted entry which intersects with the main vault near the apex of the
later. the floor of the hall is about two and a half feet above the

i
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cellar level., The walls of the cellar are whitewashed and the floor

was originally dirt though concrete obscures the original level. There are
square stone blocks set into the floor on which the wood sleepers for
supporting wine casks once rested. The entire structure of walls in the
cellar are rock faced coursed ashlar stone with the size of the coursed stone
gradually diminishing as the wall rises in height towards the wvault.

The floor of the hall and the press fermentation room are concrete. In

the hall there is a boxed stair rising to the living quarters

with a boxed in storage area filling the remainder of the space at the

rear of the central hall. Part of a handmade Norfolk tvpe latch remains

on the board and batten door to the rear storage space. The tongue and grooved
boards forming the wall of the storeroom are handplaned.

The cieling of the center hall is plaster and lathed as is the press and
fermentation room. The walls are rough textured plaster covered.

All window and door openings on the interior have segmental shaped openings
with flat upper case head supporting a plaster and stone fill between

the case and the segmental arch. The opening for the single leaf door

and sidelights at the entry in the hall has a large stone segmental

arch with gently curving interior reveal meeting with the wood structure
of the door casing.

There is an interior brick wall seperating the press-fermentation room

into two sections. The is of two courses of brick and forms the foundation
for the interior brick wall corresponding above in the living quarters,
There is incorporated into the brick masonry a large brick chimney

stack which once had an opening into the larger of the two rooms.

The opening was bridged with a segmental arch., The interior brick wall
dores not appear to ever have been plastered.

All interior doors at both levels have trim moulded in Pattern A
which matches the exterior trim on both window and door openings.
Interior window and door openings have bevel shaped reveals.

On the second story the brick chimney stack probably had an opening into
the northeast room which may indicate that this was the kitchen,

All of the living quarter doors between rooms survive. They are hand-
made Christian type doors with recessed panels on both sides. There are
mid century box rim locks which appear to be manufactured rather than
handmade.

The stair to the half story was originally open though is now boxed in.
The attic is floored with one inch tongue and grooved yellow pine.

The partially hewn rafters rise to the peak where they are half lapped
and pegged through. There are sawn collar beams on every other rafter
pair half lapped to the rafters and nailed in place. There is a location
where it is possible to see the joists of the first floor which are ca.
six by eight hand hewn beams.
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General description: One and one half story rectangle endgable stone house
built in two major phases with a wine cellar under the oldest section.

Setting: The house sits back from the road winding through the Frene creek
valley, the primary historic road into Hermann from the West.

Rooft: asphalt shingle. There are three dormers on each roof face which appear
to have been modern rebuildings of possible original dormers (?).

Facade: Five symmetrical bays with entry in the center bay. The center bay
is of frame construction between the two stone segments of the house construction,

Windows: First phase: On the facade the windows have wood lintels with wood
sills, six over six light sash and edge casing moulding in profile pattern A.
Second Phase: Segmental stone arches with six over six light sash and wood
sills with casing edge pattern A.

Door: The entrnace in the frame hall seems to have been a later addition

after the construction of both sections indicating that the hall may have once
been a breezeway betweeen the two sections. The present entry has a four

light transom and three light sidelights with a moulded panel below surrounding
a single leaf door, The rear was treated the same but has been entirely
eliminated in a modern remodeling.

Interior: The oldest section of the two consists of the left two rooms which
now comprize only the first two bays of the present facade., However, originally
the orientation was to the east. The east wall of the original house had

two doorways (now giving into the hall) one into either of the two rooms.

The northern room is substantially smaller than the other. The wall defining
the west side of the hall is the original long side exterior stone wall of the
first house. Any windows have been blocked. The windows remaining have a

flat wood architrave applied over the opening, The openings have beveled
reveals., The door between the two original rooms preserves its original
casing with a moulded edge and with applied triangular architrave with edge
beading.

The interior aspect of the later addition has been changed. The windows have
segmental shaped arch on the interior. In the hall is the stair to the half
story with turned walnut newel post and turned balusters in the railing.

Porch: There is a full porch across the facade supported on chamfered wood

posts. There is a sawtooth and eye pendant frieze. The floor is concrete.

Side elevations: East: two attic and two first story window bays West: identical.
Rear elevation: Originally three bays with centered entry to the hall.

Modern addition across much of this elevation.

Analysis:

When the second phase of construction was made the entire building was
reoriented with its facade to the south facing the road. The gable on the
original section had to be rebuilt as the endwall to the present structure,
At that time the west window openings were changed to reflect the newer
construction with segmental stone openings. The two (now) facade window bays
were left unchanged.



Cellar:

Under the newer section is a typical low cellar with interior access only.
There are two grade vents and two small niches in the walls. The cellar is
independent of the original cellar under the smaller of the two original

rooms. This cellar had an exterior entrance with a large door in the foundation
wall, possibly double leaf, with a stone foundation well which once had wood
steps from grade level. After construction of the second phase access was
probably from a trap door in the breezeway. The opening has a stone segmental
arch.

The wine cellar is approximately twelve feet deep with exposed joists in the
cellar (modern rebuilding of the floor and structure). There are three grade
level ventilation openings in the west wall. The south wall of the cellar

is the foundation of the stone interior wall dividing the two original rooms
from one another.

There are unpeeled log joists visible under part of the original breezeway-hall.
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General description: One and one half story house in two stages one of log and
the other of stone construction with a cellar beneath the stone section.

Facade and porch: The house is of two stage construction with the log

cabin first and the stone walls built to create a central passage seperating

the two rooms (one log and one stone) on the first story. The roof is continuous
out over the porch on the facade. The logs appear to have been originally exposed
under the porch. On all other elevations they are covered with lap siding.

The porch on the log section has a sleeper beam resting on through logs from the
walls to which are bucted the pole rafters of the roof which then rest on a
handhewn plate suppor:ed on-modern wood posts. The rafters on the stone section
porch also are exposed and are sawn wood.

There is a single facade window in the stone section with a large double leaf door
to the hall and a door and (modern)? window in the log portion.

Windows: In the stone section windows have brick segmental arches of alternating
courses of couble header and stretcher brick with beaded casing and flat upper
sash, six over six light window sash with wood sills., There are six over six
light sash in the log section.

Doors: The facade door is double leaf with handmade raised panels. There is a lever
action rimlock, Above the door is a four light transom under the brick segmental
arch, The door in ths log section on the facade is handmade raised panel

Christian pattern with lever action lock.

Side elevations: The =2ast endwall of the log section has a modern exterior chimney.
The west wall of the stone section has a centered half story and first story
window opening. North: There are four window bays in the stone masonry and one

in the log section,

Interior:

The stone walls defining the hall butt to the original log wall on the interior.
The stair in the hall is open but appears to have been rebuilt as do the steps
to the cellar under the stair. The wall to the left of the entrance defining
the room of the stone section appears to be constructed of narrow poles with
plaster and lathe over them. The door into this room has a mitred and edge
beaded surround. The door has four evenly sized panels and appears to be hand-
made. The door into the log section has a mitred surround and a four light upper
section door.

The log section is V-notched. The interior of the log room was always exposed
logs. There are traces of the whitewash visible on the logs and on the exposed
joists. There is evidence for a ladder for the half story from this rrom in

the southwest corner of the room. There is a flue hole visible which would have
risen from the room to the peak of the roof at the endwall.

Stone room has plastered walls, beveled reveals at the window openings.

Cellar:

Steps leading to the cellar from the hall are modern. The cellar had a large
door on pintles., Present door is modern. Running east and west is a 12 by 8
summer beam let into the masonry of the walls on which was applied
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three inches of mud and straw coming to the level of the top of the joists
over which the flooring of the room above was laid. The cellar has grade
level windows on the north and west., There is a small niche on the north
and east interior walls.

Attic details: The rafters rise from a plate atop the stone wall which is visible
on the exterior. There is a low knee wall in the half story on which the plate
rest., The rafters in the log section are peeled logs and in the stone section
they are handhewn square. Both rise to the peak and are half lapped and pegged

at the ridge. In the west stone wall there is a log sleeper from which metal ties
are attached to stabilize the exterior gable wall.
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PRIMARY HOUSE

History: Built by Christian Beckmann in the summer of 1883. The following
are from newspaper eccounts of the construction:

April 18, 1883--"Christian Beckmann received the lumber of his new building

by the Steamer Belle from St. Louis last Monday. Schneider and son contractors
for two story brick building 48 X 22 feet. Brick for the house were

made and burned on the farm of Mr. Beckmann,

November 21, 1883--'Christmann had a 'housewarming' party at his new
residence....The building is unquestionably one of the handsomest houses in

this part of the county, and is built in a most substantial manner and elegantly
finishdd inside. The masonry and bricklaying was done by George and William
Schneider and Klenk and Bensing had the contracts for the woodwork. The
painting was done by Hermann Bensing...."

General description: Two story rectangular shaped endgable brick building resting
on a pecked face coursed ahlar stone foundation with cellar below. There is
a more recent frame one story ell at the rear of the house.

Roof: Standing seam metal roof
Gable: Projecting eaves.

Cronice: Corbeled cornice of stretcher course topped by vertical header dentil
pattern and ending with a double course of stretcher brick. The corners
at the cornice are stepped.

Facade: Five symmet:rical bays with center entrance bay. The original porch
was small with fron: gable over the entry. The current porch is modern.
Centered over the entrance is a stone cartouche with "Chris. Beckmann 1883"
carved on the face,

Windows: Segmental shaped window openings of stretcher brick. The casing
head and upper sash conform to the segmental shape. The openings have beaded
edges and stone sills. Windows on the facade have two over two light sash.

Doors: The entrance has a tall two light transom with conforming segmental
shape to the brick arch. There are two light sidelights flanking the single
leaf door with exuberant applied moulding.

Side elevations: Both east and west elevations have two symmetrical bays at
either story.

Rear elevation: The rear has an 1ldentical pattern to that found on the facade
even to the original though missing gable porch at the sidelighted and transomed
entry bay. However, in 1917 (date in concrete foundation) a frame kitchen

or washroom was added to create an ell, An open space between the rear wing

and the house was once open though has since been filled in.

Interior Description:

There is a central hall, To the west is one large parlor room. To the east
is a large dining room with a lateral wall dividing it from the original
kitchen room. The parlor had an elaborate painted interior with polychromed
floreate designs on the cieling and wall,

The rafters are peeled logs and there is a center ridge board., The floors
are yellow paine of one by four inch tongue and grooved boards.
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Cellar: There is a gable roof stone walled exterior entrance on the east wall
and an interior entrance from under the central hall stair. The exterior
entrance 1is double leafed with diagonal boarded exterior and vertical interior
side. The entrance is in the stone foundationitself and is bridged with a
brick segmental arch of alternating courses of double header and stretcher
brick. An interior stone wall divides the cellar into two parts and also has
a brick segmental arch opening and the pintles for a pair of doors probably
like those which surzvive. The wall above this wall is of brick defining one
wall of the interior center hall above. The floor joists which are massive
peeled logs closely spaced are exposed in the cellar rooms. Originally the
floor was stone flagged. There are raking stone window openings at grade along
the sidewalls and visible on the exterior.

There are two noteworthy outbuildings both of which were former dwellings.

The first has three construction phases, The first is horizontal log with

half dovetail notching, one and one half storys in height with log rafters
mortised and pegged at the ridge. There was only one room with an open stair

in the southwest corner of the room. The house sat on a massive stone foundation
with eleaborate stone steps to a full finished cellar beneath, The exterior
entrance had a later braced frame handhewn attachment over the double leaf

door.

This house was probably built in the late 1840s or early 1850s by Christian
Beckmann, The large cellar and double leaf entry to the cellar are indicative

of the special funé:ion wine storage cellars of the period.

Interior features of the log room include exposed half story joists with beaded
corners and bottom edges. The floor joists of the first story were expsed

in the cellar and were peeled log. Across the facade was an open porch supported
on chamfered posts. The facade had three bays six over six light sash and
mitred and moulded window surrounds. . B :

The next stage was a half timber building which is now in ruins. The joinery
was hand hewn and given Christian numbers to match each other (rather than
the usual Roman numerals). The brick nogging was specially made to fit the
interstices and are approximately six by eight inches and two inches thick.
The third stage was a stone addition also in ruins.

A doorway between the log and half timber sections had a mitred corners and
beaded inner edge to the surround. The door was a long double panel door.

The door on the facade had multiple rectangular raised panels and was handmade.
The half timber building had casement sash.

The second building is horizontal log with V-notching and consisted of two
rooms with a log partition wall resting on a stone foundation.

Behind the main house is a two hole outhouse constructed in brick
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General Description: Iwo stage building,the first stage is brick one and one half
storys in height built on a stone foundation to which is joined at the

gable endwall, creating a long rectangular shape with ell behind, a frame section
which is covered with lap siding.

Setting: The house rests virtually at the city limits at 18th street
the last platted street in the original town of Hermann.

Roof: covered with corrugated metal.

Cornice: The brick house has a corbeled cornice with a stretcher course
surmounted by a vertical header dentil pattern and topped by a stretcher course.

Facade: There is only a single door on the long facade in the brick and
curiously a single docr in the frame section as well with no window bays
visible., It should be noted that the 'present facsde was not so originally.

Across the facade is a shed roof porch supported on chamfered posts.

Windows: The brick section have windows with flat arch es of stretcher brick
with two over two light sash.

Side elevations: South: There is an attic window in the frame section, and at
the first story there is a window and door in the endwall and a window in

the ell. North: The brick endwall has a single centered window visible in

the first story.

Rear elevation: Only partially visible.It woudd seem possible that this elevation
was once the principal facade with theee bays visible in the brick section with
a door in the center bay. The reentaant angle of the frame ell and the brick
section is filled with a shed roof porch supported on turned posts.

There is a door to the porch visible in the long wall of the ell,
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This two stage house was built by Johann Heinrich Puchta. Puchta was a native
of Ober Kotzau, Bavaria, Germany born in 1802, As an adult in Germany
Puchta was both farmer and a butcher by occupation. In 1839 he and-his

wife with their three children came to the United States emigrating directly
to Hermann.

August 6, 1841 (Deed Record E-68) Puchta bought his first 40 acres from the
town of Hermann. This was the NW quarter of the NE quarter Section 10

T45N R5W., The horizontal log cabin on the property was their first house.
February 6, 1847 Puchta added a further 40 acre quarter section of woodland
bought of Christoph Geiger for just 50 dollars (Deed G-259). 1In 1849 he
bought an adjacent tract which would later become his son's farm.

By 1850 the first stone house was probably built for his then large family.
July 10, 1848 Puchta gave a mortgage on his property to John Grass for 300 dollars,
It is likely that he used this money to build his house (G-264).

Henry Puchta age 48 occupation farmer with 800 dollars in real estate value
born in Germany

Mary age 38

Adam age 19

Margaret age 15

Anna age 13

Charles age 9

Emil age 7

Matilda age 5

Probably in the 1850s Puchta began planting vineyards on his hill slopes
above the house ideally suited for that purpose, However, at the age of
55 Heinrich Puchta died eaving the farm in the hands of the estate to be
farmed and later deeded to his son Charles. It is possible that the major
addition to the house (see floorplan and photos) and the wine presshouse
and cellar were built before the death of Heinrich, in other words near
the mid 1850s which is commensurate with their architectural features.
The buildings were certainly in place by the time of the first surviving
county tax records in 1867-1868,

By 1870 Charles Puchta now age 29 was an active and prosperous farmer
living with his mother and sister Pauline. In that year he reported

1500 dollars in personal wealth, most of which came from his active wine
making activity. The following is the census of agriculture.

1870

40 acres improved and 40 in woodland worth $3000, Charles Puchta had

500 dollars in equipment ( a great deal at that time) and paid out $200 in
wages to hired hands.

Puchta had two horses, three milk cows and two other cattle, 11 sheep and
9 hogs.

He produced:

150 bushels of wheat

200 of corn

100 of oats

150 of barley

15 1bs, of wool (hone spinning and weaving), 25 1lbs. of potatoes,

He had $100 dollars in orchard products (a significant amount), 20 1lbs, of
butter and 5 tons of hay

Puchta produced 1200 gallons of wine accounting for his entire farm product
value of $1200, a large sum of money. In 1880 he produced 600 gallons.
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General Description:

One and one half story rock faced ashlar coursed stone constructed house
with a T-shape created by the addition of a long rectangular section at right
angle to the original house,

Setting: There are a number of the original farm buildings which survive.

All sit on a slowly rising hill which rapidly falls to the north where the stone
wine cellar and press house are built into the side of the hill with Frene

creek below.

Roof: standing seam metal roof
Gable: Flush boarded

Facade and porch: The facade has five symmetrical bays on the second stage
house, with the entry in the center bay. The porch is modern. The facade
of the first period house was three bay with entry in the first bay.

Windows: On the first phase the openings have segmental shaped stone arches
with moulded casing edge and flat upper case and window sash, stone sills,
and six over six light sash. The second phase has brick segmental arches of
alternating coursing of double header and stretcher brick with beaded casing
and flat upper case edge, wood sills, and six over six light sash.,

Door: The facade door is double leaf with three rectangular raised panels.
There is a five light transom. The door in the oldest section has a four
light upper section over a double panel below., The door has a lever action
rim lock,

Side elevations: On the first phase of the north elevation the older

section mirrors the facade(see floorplan) with three bays and a door opposite
the door on the facade. The endwalls were originally blank., The second phase
has a single centered window at either story in the endwalls.

Rear elevation: The T-shape is created by the first phase construction.
To the northeast and the north of the second phase building there are
modern additions.

Interior Description:

In the first phase house there were originally two rooms divided by a hewn
upright stud wall, Doors were Christian pattern with flush panels and lever
action rim locks.

Between the two sections is a door with two light transom with trim matching
the second period with edge beaded surround. Openings in the older section
and the newer have beveled reveals and segmental shape arches.

The second section has a center hall with boxed stair leading to the half
story. The floors are random width tongue and grooved white pine (?).

The doors to the rooms on either side of the hall are mitred and edge beaded.
The doors are machine made with exuberant applied moulding to the inside edge
of the panels of the Christian type doors. The interior walls are brick with
chimney flues on the inside walls,
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Wine Cellar and Press House:

The wine cellar is rock faced coursed ashlar stone construction with a south
west entrance at grade in the hillside rising to the south and east. The

entry is double leaved with pintles visible., The doorway has a handsomely
treated stone segmental arch. The cellar is stone vaulted with gable

endwall ventilation shafts., There are two small vent windows to either side
of the main entrance typical of the period.

On top of the cellar is a horizontal log press house with V-notcheing and wide
intervals between the logs which were never filled. At grade level on the
south side long wall was the entrnace which is the only opening in the building.
The interior has exposed construction with log ceiling joists. The floor

is dirt covering the arch of the winé cellar below. The rafters are peeled
logs butted and nailed at the ridge.

There is evidence of there having been a shed roof porch or antechamber
over the entrance to the wine cellar at one time,

First House:!

Dwelling cabin of one room with V-notched logs resting on a stone foundation

of random rubble. There was a stair in the corner to an unfinished half

story. The joists are exposed in the room below and are merely peeled logs.
The joists of both storys are carried through amd are visible on the exterior.
The plate of the porch under the continuous roof line on the facade is integral
with the construction of the log house consigting of a horizontal log extending
beyond the wall plane. There is only a door on the facade and two windows
opposite on the other long wall.

Across from the cabin is a V-notched corn crib and to the north of the crib
is a square notched chicken shed on a concrete foundation.
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Adam Puchta houses and farm complex

House #1

One and one half story rectangle endgable house constructed of rock faced
coursed stone with a cellar beneath the east room.

Roof: corrugated metal

Facade: Four irregular bays with the door in the second bay.

The square hewn half story joists are brought through the stone walls of
both the facade and the exterior long side--visible from the exterior
(see photos) the plate to which the rafters are attached rests on top of
the through joists and is also visible on the exterior.

Windows: Segmenta.. stone arches with six over six 1lght sash and wooden sills.
The casing edge is not visible. The upper sash head is horizontal above which
is the casing supporting a mortar fill in the segmental shaped space

under the arch.

Doors: The main entry is double leaf with multiple panels in each handmade
door. Above the door is a four light transom. The rear door is single
leaf.

Side elevations: Last: one centered attic and first story window opening.
West: a single centered attic window only.

Rear elevation: There are four innegular bays at the rear with a door
in the third bay.

Interior

The interior is built around a hall between two uneven sized rooms. In

the hall is a boxed stair to the unfinished half story. The interior walls
are constructed of handhewn four by four inch studs mortised to the upper
plate and voered with handsplit lathe and the whole plaster covered.

The two interior doorways have mitred and inner edge beading on the surrounds
with handmade "Christian pattern paneled doors. The rimlock on the double
leaf entry door is lever action.

The roof is constructed of unpeeled logs butted at the ridge. The interior
window openings are segmental arched and have an approximate six inch
beveled reveal.

Cellar: The cellar is under the smaller east room only and had originally
an exterior entrance on the facade with a double leaf door and segmental

stone archway. Taie floor joists are exposed in the cellar of the room above.

Outbuildings: There is a brick gable roof smokehouse to the rear of the stone
house.

House #2

One and one half story rectangle endgable brick building resting on a
rock faced coursed stone foundation,
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Roof: Covered with a standing seam metal roof. There are paired chimneys
to either side of the gable peak.

Gable: Projecting eaves with bedmould and friezeboard. The corbeled brick
cornice is returned in either gable.

Cornice: Corbeled cornice with double horizontal header brick dentil pattern
on top of a stretcher course.,

Facade: Five symmetrical bays with center entry. There is a small porch over
the entrance with decorative jigcut pendant frieze and with porch railing
with decorative jigcut balusters.

Windows: Segmental arched of stretcher brick with beaded casing edge and stone
sills with two over two light sash and the original shutters in place.

Door: The entry has a five light transom and three light sidelights with
a long panel beneath. The single leaf door casing is pilastered.

Side elevations: West and East elevations both have symmetrical two windows
in the attic half story and the first story.

Rear elevation: There are three symmetrical bays with the door in the center
under a shed roof porch.

Interior: The house is center hall with two rooms to either side. The rear
rooms are approximately two thirds size of the front rooms. The kitchen
was orlginally in the left room rear. The stair is open in the hall with

a turned walnut newel post. Interior surrounds have plain pedimented
traingular architraves.,

Press House and Wine Cellar

The cellar is built into a hill with the entrance facing to the east. The
entrance is between stone retaining walls leading to a double leaf doorway
with a stone segmental arch. The doors have diagonal outer faces and are
segmental shaped. Above the entry arch is a three light window with a segmental
stone arch as well, The cellar-is a single chamber. The walls and arch

are constructed of rock faced coursed stone masonry. There are two evenly
spaced segmental arched ventilation shafts in either long wall.

The cellar is 38 feet long and 18 feet wide interior measure.

Centered in the endwall is a low stone niche., There are two holes in the top
of the arch through which the must was poured after fermentation from the
press—-fermentation house above. There is approximately eight inches of dirt
on top of the arch.

Above the cellar and built directly on top of the foundation wall is the
presshouse and fermentation room., This too is a single chamber and is constructed
of handhewn five bty five members with the framework exposed on the interior.

There are diagonal windbraces in the corners of the building., Hewn studs

are mortised to the plate and to the sills. Unpeeled log rafters are butted
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at the ridge. The roof is covered with a standing seam metal roof and the walls
are covered with vertical butted boards. The entrance to the presshouse
is at grade on the west in the gable endwall through a double leaf doorway.

The stone house was built by Johann Adam Puchta ca. 1855-1860.

Adam Puchta was the son of Johann Heinrich Puchta a native of Ober Kotzau
Bavaria. Adam was born in 1831 and in 1839 the family immigrated to the
United States and on to Gasconade county in the same year. In 1841

the father bought a small farm adjoining this property and in 1849
bought the land which would later become his son's. At the age of 22
Adam drove an ox team to California where he stayed and mined gold

for three years returning in 1855. Early in that year he bought from
his father the forty acres upon which the houses are located from his
father. He married Clementina Riefenstahl, daughter of George
Riefenstahl a noted vintner of Hermann in the year and they settled into
a log cabin (no longer standing) on the property, soon after building
the stone house which still stands. His first wife died in 1858 and he
married Bertha Riefenstahl, sister to his<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>